
           

  
 

City Council Regular Meeting
 

Monday, August 15, 2022
6:00 p.m.

 

Chandler City Council Chambers
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

 

  



  
Our Vision
We are a world-class City that provides an exceptional
quality of life.

Our Brand
A safe, diverse, equitable and inclusive community that
connects people, chooses innovation and inspires
excellence.

Our Goals
City Council Strategic Policy Goals
1. Being the most connected City
2. Being a leader in trust and transparency
3. Maintaining fiscal sustainability
4. Attracting a range of private sector businesses
5. Fostering a contemporary culture that embraces unity
6. Being safe and beautiful

Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the
members of the Chandler City Council and to the general public that the Chandler City Council will hold a
REGULAR MEETING open to the public on Monday, August 15, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., in the Chandler City Council
Chambers, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona. One or more members of the Chandler City Council may
attend this meeting by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services by contacting
the City Clerk’s office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make requests in advance as it affords the City
time to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.

           

Page 2 of 4 Council Regular Meeting



           

Regular Meeting Agenda   

 

 

Call to Order
 

Roll Call
 

Invocation - Elder Bruce Lundquist, Faith Church of the Valley
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the governing body, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

City Clerk
 
 

1. July 2022 Council Meeting Minutes
  Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Work Session of July 11,

2022; Regular Meeting of July 11, 2022; the Study Session of July 11, 2022; and the
Regular Meeting of July 14, 2022. 

 

 
Page 3 of 4 Council Regular Meeting



  Council Focus Area(s):
 

2. Official Canvass of the City of Chandler Primary Election of August 2, 2022
  Move City Council accept the official results of the August 2, 2022, Primary Election of

the City of Chandler.
 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Adjourn
 

 

Page 4 of 4 Council Regular Meeting



ITEM  1 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 
       

Date: August 15, 2022
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Subject: July 2022 Council Meeting Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Work Session of
July 11, 2022; Regular Meeting of July 11, 2022; the Study Session of July 11,
2022; and the Regular Meeting of July 14, 2022. 

Attachments
Minutes of the Work Session of July 11, 2022 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 11, 2022 
Minutes of the Study Session of July 11, 2022 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 14, 2022 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Work Session 
 

July 11, 2022 | 5:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers Conference Room 

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 5:00 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke      Joshua Wright, City Manager 

Vice Mayor Terry Roe     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 

Councilmember OD Harris     Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Councilmember Mark Stewart     

Councilmember René Lopez       

Councilmember Christine Ellis      

Councilmember Matt Orlando  

 

Staff in Attendance  

Tadd Wille, Assistant City Manager 

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager / Chief Financial Officer 

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager 

Matt Burdick, Communications and Public Affairs Director 

Melissa Quillard, Mayor and Council Communications Manager 

Kristin Maier, Human Resources Manager 

Niki Tapia, Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Supervisor 

 

Discussion 
1. Presentation and Direction to Staff Regarding the Addition of Juneteenth as a City Observed 

Holiday, to be Observed on June 19 

 

MAYOR HARTKE thanked Councilmember Harris for bringing this item forward. Mayor Hartke said 

Juneteenth commemorates June 19, 1865, which was the day that enslaved Americans in 



Page 2 of 9 
 

Galveston received word of the Emancipation Proclamation even though it was signed two and a 

half years earlier. In June 2021 it became a federal holiday but that does not automatically become 

a City holiday unless adopted by the City. In 2016, the State of Arizona officially recognized 

Juneteenth as a holiday but is not one of the 18 states that have made it a paid holiday. Mayor 

Hartke called for a staff presentation.  

 

JOSHUA WRIGHT, City Manager, introduced the discussion item and staff would provide 

information to Council so that they may direct staff.  

 

NIKI TAPIA, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Supervisor, presented the following presentation. 

• Juneteenth Holiday  

• Juneteenth 

o What is it? 

▪ Juneteenth is an annual celebration commemorating the freedom of all enslaved 

people in the United States o America. On June 19th, 1865, two and a half years 

after the Emancipation Proclamation, Union soldiers went to Galveston, Texas to 

enforce the freeing of all remaining slaves. 

• How Do We Celebrate Juneteenth in Chandler? 

o South Chandler Self-Help has organized Black History Month and Juneteenth events in 

Chandler since the 1980’s. 

• Expanded Events in 2020 & 2021 

o Chandler4Change 

▪ Caravan during COVID-19 

▪ Festival at Folley Park in 2021 

o City facilitated Culture Music in the Park event in AJ Chandler Park 

• Juneteenth 2022 Activities 

o Mayor and City Council proclaimed the celebration of Juneteenth in Chandler at the June 

6 City Council meeting 

o Multiple partners collaborated to coordinate four days of celebration from June 16-19, 

2022 

o City employees provided opportunity to attend informational session regarding the 

history of Juneteenth 

 

KRISTIN MAIER, Human Resources Manager, continued the presentation. 

• Juneteenth as a Federal Holiday 

o On June 17, 2021, President Biden signed a bill making Juneteenth the eleventh 

American federal holiday. 

o The federal government’s authority to declare holidays extends only to federal 

employees and institutions under federal control. Other institutions may, but are not 

required to, observe federal holidays. The Chandler City Council retains the authority to 

determine observed holidays for the City of Chandler.  

• Current City of Chandler Holidays 



Page 3 of 9 
 

o New Year’s Day 

o Martin Luther King Day 

o President’s Day 

o Memorial Day 

o Independence Day 

o Labor Day 

o Veteran’s Day 

o Thanksgiving Day 

o Day after Thanksgiving 

o Christmas Day 

o Personal Holiday 

• Current Valley Municipalities Observing Juneteenth as a City Holiday 

o Avondale 

o Buckeye* 

o Glendale 

o Goodyear 

o Phoenix 

o Scottsdale 

o Surprise 

o Tempe 

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked in the Buckeye holiday schedule if Juneteenth would be observed 

only if it was on a weekday. 

 

MS. MAIER confirmed that was correct, if it fell on a weekend here would be no additional day of 

observance.  

 

MS. MAIER continued the presentation. 

• Implementation Considerations 

o Changes to the City holiday schedule require a personnel rule change, approved by City 

Council resolution 

o Can be added to Memorandums of Understanding (MOU’s) for labor associations 

outside of meet and confer cycle 

o Estimated financial impact of adding Juneteenth holiday is $222,000 

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if public safety employees would be paid overtime on a 

holiday. 

 

MS. MAIER said yes, they get paid time and a half for working on a holiday.  

 

MR. WRIGHT continued the presentation.  

• Options to Consider 



Page 4 of 9 
 

o Keep existing City holiday schedule (no change) 

o Designate Juneteenth as a City of Chandler holiday beginning in 2023 

o Add another personal holiday for employees to use at their discretion 

• Next Steps 

o If directed by City Council to proceed with adding a new City holiday, resolution 

amending personnel rule would appear on August 18, 2022, regular meeting agenda 

o Direction to City Manager on operational expectations for Juneteenth 2023 (e.g. 

recreation centers, aquatic facilities, libraries, etc.). 

o Cost of new holiday in FY22-23 would be absorbed through salary savings or other 

operational efficiencies and would be budgeted in future fiscal years. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if any employees working on that holiday would receive time 

and a half.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said they would either receive time and a half pay or would be able to take the holiday 

on a different day.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if that would change the $222,000 amount. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said that amount is just an estimate, but it would range depending on how they 

deployed the staffing model. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked on which holidays are facilities completely closed.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said that all facilities are completely closed on Christmas Day, New Year’s Day, and 

Thanksgiving. During other holidays, public-facing facilities are operational.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked about the operations on Independence Day. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said that some recreational facilities are open with limited hours during the day. The 

cost implications would be within the current fiscal year, and the cost would be able to be 

absorbed through operational efficiencies and salary savings. If adopted, the holiday would be 

planned for in future fiscal years as a budget item. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked for background information on the flexible personal holiday 

currently given.  

 

MS. MAIER said she was not sure. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said that when adopting Martin Luther King Jr. Day, there were more 

personal holiday days and one of those was absorbed into Martin Luther King Jr. Day.  

 



Page 5 of 9 
 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked if we are still planning to do the Christmas break.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said yes, the Christmas break plan has been announced. It is not the same holiday 

schedule, it is condensed, and not considered the same type of leave.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ confirmed that it is still time off.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said yes, it is still time off, it is just coded differently in payroll.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked how the break is different from the holiday.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said it is similar in terms of that it is time away from the office. The break is not added 

to a schedule. There are 10 holidays with 3 additional days off.  

 

COUNCILMMBER ELLIS asked if the time off around Christmas is part of a benefit program or 

incentive program and not a holiday. 

 

MR. WRIGHT confirmed that was correct, it is not a formal holiday. The difference is that this is a 

year-to-year program, it has not been announced permanently. Mr. Wright said we are still open 

on those days and all services are still available.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked which offices are closed and which are open during the winter 

break time. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said everything is open: City Hall, water bill, permits, tax and license are all open. This 

is done through rotating staff or working remotely. Services are not interrupted. If staff have to 

work those days then they take those days off at another time. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if overtime is granted during the winter break.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said that there is some overtime for public safety employees.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked if it is possible to reduce the estimated cost of the holiday.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said staff can explore that and look into operations on what services are expected to 

be.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked about the most cost-efficient way to celebrate the holiday.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said that staff could look into different offices being opened to reduce the impact of 

the cost.  

 



Page 6 of 9 
 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said it is beneficial to look into reducing the cost before 

implementation.  It is important to celebrate, but we must also be responsible with our money.  

 

DAWN LANG, Deputy City Manager / Chief Financial Officer, answered that the $220,000 estimate 

came from a comparison with Presidents’ Day. Public safety is still engaged but services like utility 

services and administrative offices are closed. The cost would be comparable unless it is executed 

like the winter break. That is an average cost of public safety wages, benefits, and overtime. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE said for a summer holiday, the pools should be open.   

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said one creative way to reduce cost would be to close early. 

Councilmember Ellis asked if there had been any observance of holidays through a half day work 

schedule.   

 

MR. WRIGHT said a half day had not been used as a holiday observance.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked if on Independence Day, the front-facing offices are closed.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said that that was correct, public facilities like recreation options are still open.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said that she was considering the observance as more of a floating 

holiday. It is a holiday observance. There is a whole week of events of bringing organizations 

together. We did an amazing job this year of putting Juneteenth celebrations together.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked if the floating holiday would be a different value than the 

$220,000 estimate.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said staff would look into it.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ agreed that a floating holiday is a good idea to implement for this 

observance. This could promote inclusiveness so that everyone can celebrate their cultural history 

on a day they see fit.  

 

MS. LANG said that this would be easier to schedule as not everyone would be off on one day, so 

the cost would probably be less.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE stated that this discussion was to consider the celebration of Juneteenth 

specifically. It could be a floating holiday but for recognizing Juneteenth.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said he is fine with either a formal day or a floating holiday, he would 

like to observe the holiday either way. There would be a cost no matter the logistics.  

 



Page 7 of 9 
 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART said that recognizing the holiday is important. How it is celebrated is 

still to be determined, but the pools should be open.  

 

VICE MAYOR ROE said that it is important to have good benefits. Adding a holiday where 

individuals can choose what they celebrate is a good idea. It is cost effective and still recognizes 

the holiday. We can do it affordably and be inclusive of many celebrations.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said that the consensus is to move forward with this. The name could still be 

Juneteenth, but people could use it as a floating holiday. Critical services would still be operational.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said he liked the idea of how Buckeye observed the holiday on 

weekdays. Critical services would be operational, but in general reduce staffing. It could be 

comparable to Independence Day.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked that if it fell on a weekday, it would be a hard day off, as opposed to a flex 

day.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said yes.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said we could add Juneteenth to the holiday schedule and use a 

floating holiday to take that day off.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said some of the services like the pool would be open. Other services 

not essential would be closed.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said that the front-facing departments would schedule different than 

administrative staff.  

 

VICE MAYOR ROE commented that Juneteenth is specific to that day and is appropriate. The 

floating holiday might have a different name so that it was not tied to the day.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said that it should be called Juneteenth, whether people observe it or not.  

 

VICE MAYOR ROE said that naming it something else would be in line with promoting diverse 

celebrations of holidays. Vice Mayor Roe asked if it is important to name it Juneteenth or provide 

an opportunity for others to celebrate what is appropriate for them.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said that staff has opportunities with winter break to use the days at 

other times. Councilmember Harris said that this holiday should still be named Juneteenth but is 

open to other recognitions of holidays.  

 



Page 8 of 9 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said that we are not creating another holiday, we are making sure that 

staff can recognize this federally designated holiday. Councilmember Ellis agreed that looking into 

diverse celebrations of holidays would be good to investigate.   

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO commented that there is a set number of holidays that can be taken. 

There are some permanently off. There could be a list of varied holidays that if the employee 

wants to take off, they would be able to. There could be a pool of holidays that employees can 

take off, but that would be a different conversation.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said that for today, that can be brought up later. Councilmember Harris 

wanted to ensure there is a consensus for the observation of Juneteenth.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART summarized that we are at consensus that Juneteenth should be 

celebrated. We just need to decide how we are going to recognize that and still provide customer 

service. We will figure out how time off will work with staff and contracts.  

 

MR. WRIGHT mentioned that the concern was how to balance service to residents while still 

recognizing the holiday. There are ways to balance that operationally.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said that pools should be open. Councilmember Harris asked for 

information on what should be open in conjunction with the holiday. It should be parallel with 

Independence Day operations.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE directed staff to look into this. There is an overall acceptance of observing 

Juneteenth, the details just need to be worked out.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART said there several different holidays to celebrate and asked about 

other days that should be recognized in the same vein.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said that staff can look into other cultural celebrations.  

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:47 p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  August 15, 2022 



Page 9 of 9 
 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Work 

Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 11th day of July 2022.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of August, 2022. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

July 11, 2022 | 6:00 p.m. 

Chandler City Council Chambers  

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 7:10 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke     Joshua Wright, City Manager  

Vice Mayor Terry Roe     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 

Councilmember OD Harris    Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Councilmember Mark Stewart     

Councilmember René Lopez     

Councilmember Christine Ellis  

Councilmember Matt Orlando 

  

Invocation 
The invocation was given by Pastor Victor Hardy, Congregational Church of the Valley. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember Harris. 

 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 
City Clerk 

1. April 29, 2022, and June 2022 City Council Minutes  

Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Work Session of June 20, 

2022; Special Meeting of June 20, 2022; Study Session of June 20, 2022; Regular Meeting of 

June 23, 2022; and the Special Meeting - Budget Briefing of April 29, 2022. 

 

Development Services 



Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 

2. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5019, PLH21-0094 Alta Uptown located at the Southeast 

Corner of Arizona Avenue and Corporate Place, and More Generally Located 1/4 Mile North 

of the Northeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and Warner Road 

Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5019 approving PLH21-0094 Alta Uptown, Rezoning 

from C-3 to PAD for multi-family residential with Mid-Rise Overlay allowing heights up to 

sixty (60) feet, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 

 

Mayor and Council 

3. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5020 Amending the Code of the City of Chandler, Chapter 

6, Emergency Management, Section 6-3 Powers and Duties, Subsection 6-3.2 Relating to the 

Mayor's Authority to Declare an Emergency 

Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5020, amending the Code of the City of Chandler, 

Chapter 6, Emergency Management, Section 6-3 Powers and Duties, Subsection 6-3.2 

relating to the Mayor's authority to declare an emergency.  

 

Public Works and Utilities 

4. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5014 Granting a Power Distribution Easement to Salt River 

Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District, At No Cost, for Electrical Facilities that 

Will Be Relocated Underground as Part of the Chandler Heights Improvement Project from 

McQueen Road to Gilbert Road  

Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 5014 granting a power 

distribution easement to SRP, at no cost, for electrical facilities that will be relocated 

underground as part of the Chandler Heights Improvement Project from McQueen Road to 

Gilbert Road. 

 

Consent Agenda Motion and Vote  
Councilmember Orlando moved to approve the Consent Agenda of the July 11, 2022, Regular City 

Council Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Harris.  

 

Motion carried unanimously (7-0), with the exception of Consent Agenda Item No. 3, which passed 

by majority (6-1), Councilmember Orlando dissenting.  

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  August 15, 2022 

 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of Regular 

Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 11th day of July 2022.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of August, 2022. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Study Session 
 

July 11, 2022 | 6:00 p.m. 

Chandler City Council Chambers  

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 7:16 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke     Joshua Wright, City Manager  

Vice Mayor Terry Roe     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 

Councilmember OD Harris    Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Councilmember René Lopez     

Councilmember Mark Stewart     

Councilmember Christine Ellis  

Councilmember Matt Orlando 

  

Scheduled Public Appearances 
MAYOR HARTKE invited Councilmember Stewart to join him for the recognitions. 

 

1. Service Recognition 

Jason Crampton – 15 Years 

 

2. Proclamation - Kiwanis Club of Chandler 

MAYOR HARTKE read the proclamation and invited Vice Mayor Roe, Dawn Lang, and members of 

the Kiwanis Club to accept.   

 

DAWN LANG, Deputy City Manager / Chief Financial Officer, said they are so grateful to serve a 

community like Chandler. This is the second time that the convention has been held in Chandler. 

Many clubs will be here representing the Southwest District and experiencing Chandler at its 

finest.  
 



Page 2 of 11 
 

3. Proclamation - Drowning Impact Awareness Month 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART read the proclamation and invited Jessica Chamberlain, recreation 

Coordinator II, and Carlos Vargas, Fire Battalion Chief, to accept.  

 

JESSICA CHAMBERLAIN, Recreation Coordinator II, said in 2019, Chandler Fire, Police, and Aquatics 

departments partnered and launched the Water You Doing campaign to bring awareness to the 

community. Education is essential to prevent drowning.  
 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 
Discussion was held on items 3, 6, and 11.  

 

Airport 

1. Amendment to the Airport Commission Bylaws  

Move City Council approve the amended Chandler Airport Commission Bylaws as 

recommended by the Chandler Airport Commission. 

 

City Clerk 

 2. Board and Commission Appointments  

Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended. 

 

City Manager 

3. Resolution No. 5599 Approving the Agreement between the Maricopa Association of 

Governments (MAG) and the City of Chandler to Develop a Project Assessment for 

Enhanced Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities and Potential Traffic Calming Elements on Hunt 

Highway, from Cooper Road to Val Vista Drive 

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5599 approving the Active Transportation 

Project Agreement No. 828C-0R between the Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) 

and the City of Chandler to Develop a Project Assessment for enhanced bicycle and 

pedestrian facilities and potential traffic calming elements on Hunt Highway, from Cooper 

Road to Val Vista Drive, in the amount of $70,000. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for a staff presentation. 

 

RYAN PETERS, Strategic Initiatives Director, introduced the item and said this project was identified 

in the 2019 Transportation Master Plan as a popular area of bicyclists. The traffic speeds prevent 

people from using this corridor. The Gila River Indian Community has a casino under construction 

in the area which would case changes in the traffic patterns. Mr. Peters said this item would 

determine what options are available for this area of the City.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO emphasized that this item is more for the calming measures rather 

than the bicycle lane. Councilmember Orlando asked when the traffic study is due. 

 



Page 3 of 11 
 

MR. PETERS said that the traffic calming would be significant for Hunt Highway. There is a narrow 

right of way between the City of Chandler and the GRIC boundary. Mr. Peters said any kind of 

bicycle improvements made would have a natural effect on calming. 

 

JASON CRAMPTON, Transportation Planning Manager, said that the study would take six to nine 

months to complete.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO confirmed if any new ideas come up, we would share them with the 

GRIC community to potentially share on the cost. 

 

MR. CRAMPTON said staff will look at those options, as the project is currently not in the CIP. 

Future options would be analyzed as the project is developed.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked how potential completion of the casino would skew traffic study results.  

 

MR. PETERS said that if the casino were built during the study, there would be an impact. The 

consultant would likely examine existing and projected traffic patterns, with the traffic impact 

analysis provided by GRIC. There would also be real-time analysis. This may be examined in a 

future year.  

 

4. Agreement No. CM8-962-3970, Amendment No. 2, with Lyft, Inc., for the First Mile, Last Mile 

Program 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. CM8-962-3970, Amendment No. 2, with Lyft, Inc., 

for the First Mile, Last Mile Program, in an amount not to exceed $50,000, for the period of 

one year, beginning July 21, 2022, through July 20, 2023. 

 

Community Services 

5. Agreement No. CS0-988-4215, Amendment No. 3, with BrightView Landscape Services, Inc., 

for Park Mowing Services 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. CS0-988-4215, Amendment No. 3, with 

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc., for park mowing services, increasing the spending limit 

by $189,410, for a revised amount not to exceed $989,366. 

 

Development Services  

6. Resolution No. 5598 Designating the Southside Village Neighborhood as a Historic 

Conservation District Located in the Southeast Quadrant of Arizona Avenue and Frye Road 

and Bounded by Arizona Avenue to the Union Pacific Railroad Tracks and by Frye Road to 

Pecos Road 

Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5598 designating the Southside Village 

Neighborhood as a Historic Conservation District to honor the history and heritage of 

Southside Village, located in the southeast quadrant of Arizona Avenue and Frye Road and 



Page 4 of 11 
 

bounded by Arizona Avenue to the Union Pacific Railroad tracks and by Frye Road to Pecos 

Road. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked for a staff presentation.  

 

DEREK HORN, Development Services Director, presented the following presentation.  

• Southside Village Historic Conservation District 

• In 2020 the Chandler City Council adopted Ordinance 4936 for Historic Preservation  

• The Ordinance created 4 Classifications of historic properties 

o Heritage Site 

o Conservation District 

o Historic Preservation District / Zoning Overlay 

o Landmark 

• Conservation District 

• Southside Village Historic Conservation District Resolution No. 5598 

• Request 

o Approval of Southside Village Historic Conservation District, Resolution No. 5598 

o Recommended by the Historic Preservation Commission on June 30 

• Proposed Boundaries of the District with significant historic locations 

o Location of early Chandler’s African American and Latino community 

o Many community leaders came from Southside 

• Benefits of a Historic Conservation District 

o Recognition of history and heritage 

▪ Images and stories 

o Encourages preservation of remaining context 

o Physical markers 

▪ Signs, Pylons, Plaques 

o Future opportunities for preservation 

• Additional Planned District Investments 

o Harris Park Playground 

o Initial studies underway 

▪ Alley Utilization 

▪ Urban Land Institute 

▪ Wayfinding study 

o South Arizona Avenue Corridor Area Plan update 

o Salvation Army Campus Master Plan 

o Washington Street Development 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said this is an amazing moment for Southside Village. The families of 

Chandler have left a great impact moving this forward.  

 



Page 5 of 11 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO thanked staff and the Historic Preservation Commission for their 

work. This is the first of many designations.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS thanked staff and individuals involved. The people who started 

Chandler would be recognized by this designation.  

 

ELAINE WOODS presented the following presentation. 

• Southside Village Historic Community Designation Proposal presented by Chandler 4 Change 

and the SCSHF 

• Education 

o Ocotillo, Winn, Carver High, Cleveland, Chandler High School  

• The Vidal Family  

o Instrumental in the start of The Church of the Nazarene 

• Light and Life Church 100 Years Old formerly The Church of the Nazarene 

o The Vidal’s played a major part in the building of the Light & Life Church that sits on the 

Northeast corner of Arizona Ave and Saragosa St.  

• Mrs. Carlanthe Turner and Family 

o Miss Carlanthe was instrumental in the start of Mt. Olive MBC. She and her husband 

housed the first pastor until he secured housing.  

• Mt. Olive Missionary Baptist Church has served as the community safe haven and place of help 

for over 80 years. The church continues to thrive and serve this community. With city assistance 

Mt. Olive has provided home the South Chandler Self-Help for over 25 years.  

• Emma Arbuckle Doc 

o Emma Doc Buckle served as housekeeper for the Pine’s and the community doctor for 

in her community. She continued to provide home remedies until her health began to 

fail.  

• Debra L. Childers 

o Emma Arbuckle’s Granddaughter 

o Southside Village Raised 

o Black Female Published Author 

o Daughter of Willie Arbuckle, Sr. (1st of 4 black students to integrate Chandler High 

School), also Pastor of the longstanding Pentecost Church of Jesus Christ 

o Mother/Grandmother 

• Miss Lucille Wilson was the community cook, laundry service for the working class and the best 

Tea Cake creator ever! Now the oldest living resident of the community.  

• NJ Harris Bar-B-Que Pit 

o Mr. Harris provided the best Bar-B-Que in the community with the most flavor filled 

sauce known. First black family in Chandler.  

o Worked for Dr. Chandler and was instrumental in the build of the famous San Marcos 

Hotel. He’s also the Great grandfather to LaVon Woods.  

• Zora Folley Folley Family & The Famous Ali Fight 

• Neighborhood Clean-Up Campaign by Gene Woods, Sr.  



Page 6 of 11 
 

• The Vidal’s 

• Who We Are…Family/Community 

• Grace Memorial Church of God in Christ  

• Pentecost Church of Jesus Christ  

• The Payne Family 

• The Escandon Family 

o Steve Escandon & Wife Anna maintains the family home of Eleazar Sr. and Jessie 

Escandon. The family has been in Southside since the beginning. While Eleazar a WWII 

vet labored for the TUSD, Jessie worked as a maid to Attorney Conway Ryan. The family 

remembers her ironing their clothes and tending to their little ones; who stayed in 

contact with the family well after they reached maturity.  

• Downtown Chandler 

o Why is it important to recognize the community that helped built Chandler? 

▪ Entrepreneurs 

▪ Strong Labor Force 

▪ Family & Child Care 

▪ Agriculture 

▪ Commerce  

▪ Building Business 

 

MAYOR HARTKE thanked Ms. Woods and Mr. Horn for putting this together.   

 

7. Preliminary Development Plan, PLH22-0017 Andy's Frozen Custard, Located South of the 

Southeast Corner of McQueen Road and Chandler Boulevard  

Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH22-0017 Andy's Frozen 

Custard for site layout and building architecture for a new drive-thru restaurant, subject to 

the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

Economic Development 

8. Agreement with Greater Phoenix Economic Council (GPEC) for Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Move City Council approve the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 agreement with the Greater Phoenix 

Economic Council (GPEC) for regional economic development services, in the amount of 

$137,209, for the period of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. 

 

Fire Department 

9. Resolution No. 5564 Emergency Cooperation Agreement between the City of Chandler and 

Dignity Health 

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5564, approving an Emergency 

Cooperation Agreement with Dignity Health, authorizing the City Manager to execute the 

Agreement, and authorizing the Fire Chief to implement the provisions of the Agreement. 

 



Page 7 of 11 
 

10. Resolution No. 5600, approving a First Amendment to the Educational Affiliation Agreement 

between Phoenix Children's Hospital, Inc., and the City of Chandler, through the Chandler 

Fire Department, for Paramedic Student Clinical Training and Education  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5600 authorizing the Chandler Fire 

Department (CFD) to extend the term of the agreement with Phoenix Children's Hospital, 

Inc. (PCH), to allow clinical training and education for paramedic students to aid in meeting 

paramedic program requirements. 

 

11. Purchase of Extractors for the Fire Stations 

Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of extractors, from Coin & 

Professional Equipment Co., in the amount of $147,952. 

MAYOR HARTKE asked for a staff presentation. 

 

THOMAS DWIGGINS, Fire Chief, said this item is a purchasing agreement with CPEC for the 

purchase of 11 industrial extractors for each fire station. An extractor is a specialized washing 

machine that is designed to extract carcinogens from firefighter’s structural turnout gear or their 

personal protective equipment. The National Fire Protection Administration and manufacturers 

of gear recommend washing gear post exposure to every fire, smoke, or hazardous materials. 

There is currently a process in place with ECMS out of Phoenix that would wash and inspect gear 

once per year and anytime there is a significant exposure to a large fire. To stay consistent with 

the recommendations of NFPA and manufacturers, washing more frequently is needed. In the 

City of Chandler, every firefighter has two sets of gear. If their primary set is contaminated, it 

would be sent to be cleaned. The current process of cycling through primary and secondary sets 

of gear takes seven days. The seven-day window is problematic as firefighters work two to three 

shifts within that time span. If they respond to a second fire, they will have to clean their 

secondary set themselves and wear the gear again. The goal is to purchase 11 extractors and 

install them, create a washing program, and policy to mandate washing after every fire. There 

would be a decrease in exposure to carcinogens and a decrease in washing time. Carcinogens 

cause cancer in firefighters. Clean gear is a more effective and safe set of gear.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO supported the item and shared that letting the public know what 

this is about is important.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said the goal of protecting firefighters in their line of work is essential. 

Councilmember Ellis asked what the cost for the extractors would be.  

 

CHIEF DWIGGINS answered that it would be around $147,000. Policy would mandate washing 

after every fire. With these extractors, the gear is anticipated to be washed 900 more times. The 

current cost to outsource washing is $100 each. There is a cost savings in this switch.  

 



Page 8 of 11 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS commented that this is a good return on our dollars. Councilmember 

Ellis asked how this was funded. 

 

JOSHUA WRIGHT, City Manager, answered that these are reallocated dollars initially sourced 

from ARPA and CARES that offset other general fund projects. The funds are general fund 

dollars.   

 

Information Technology 

12. Purchase of SolarWinds Software Annual Maintenance 

Move the City Council approve the purchase of SolarWinds software annual maintenance, 

from SHI International, utilizing the Omnia Partners Contract No. 2018011-02, in the 

amount of $74,701, for the term of August 18, 2022, through August 17, 2023. 

 

Management Services 

13. Agreement No. 4481, with Piper Sandler & Co., for Financial Advisor Services 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. 4481, with Piper Sandler & Co., for financial 

advisor services, for a two-year term, beginning July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2024, with the 

option of up to two two-year extensions. 

 

14. Agreement No. MS8-946-3817, Amendment No. 4, for Lockbox Services 

Move to approve Agreement No. MS8-946-3817, Amendment No. 4, with JPMorgan Chase 

Bank, N.A., for lockbox services, in the amount of $68,500, for the period of August 1, 2022, 

through July 31, 2023. 

 

15. Purchase of Office Supplies 

Move the City Council approve the purchase of office supplies, from Staples Business 

Advantage, utilizing the Sourcewell Contract No. 012320-SCC, for the period of April 1, 2022, 

through March 31, 2023, in an amount not to exceed $220,000. 

 

16. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License application for Hi 5 Sushi, LLC, DBA Hi 5 

Sushi 

Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for 

approval of the State Liquor Job No. 199998, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for Ben 

Phoung Lam, Agent, Hi 5 Sushi, LLC, DBA Hi 5 Sushi, located at 225 W. Warner Road, Suite 

3, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 303584. 

 

Neighborhood Resources 

17. Resolution No. 5604 Approving to Submit a Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) 

Application to HUD to Implement the Redevelopment of Chandler Public Housing Portfolio 

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5604, authorizing the City Manager or his 

Designee to submit an application to U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

(HUD) for HUD's Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program and to implement the 



Page 9 of 11 
 

redevelopment of the Chandler Public Housing Portfolio with the City of Chandler Housing 

and Redevelopment Division as Developer/Co-Developer, and authorizing the City Manager 

to take all action necessary to implement and operate all phases of the redevelopment and 

disburse public housing and/or affordable housing funds for related projects. 

 

Public Works and Utilities  

19. Agreement No. WW0-885-4137, Amendment No. 2, with In-Pipe Technology, LLC, and USP 

Technologies, LLC, for Collection System Odor and Corrosion Control 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. WW0-885-4137, Amendment No. 2, with In-Pipe 

Technology, LLC, and USP Technologies, LLC, for collection system odor and corrosion 

control, in a combined amount not to exceed $750,000, for a one-year period, July 1, 2022, 

through June 30, 2023. 

 

20. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2203.201, with GHD, Inc., for the Water Main 

Replacement 2022 Design Services 

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2203.201 to GHD, Inc., 

for the Water Main Replacement 2022 Design Services, in an amount not to exceed 

$808,781.50. 

21. Project Agreement No. WA2107.401, with Felix Construction Company, Pursuant to Job 

Order Contract No. JOC1913.401, for the Hunt Highway Water Production Facility Ground 

Subsidence Mitigation 

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2107.401 to Felix Construction 

Company, Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1913.401, for the Hunt Highway Water 

Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation, in an amount not to exceed $466,622. 

 

22. Professional Services Agreement No. WW2210.201, with Dibble & Associates Consulting 

Engineers, Inc., for the Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation Design Services 

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW2210.201 to Dibble & 

Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., for the Price Road Frontage Road Sewer 

Rehabilitation Design Services, in an amount not to exceed $270,000. 

 

23. Project Agreement No. WA2104.401, with PCL Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order 

Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Filter 

Improvements – Phase 1 

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2104.401, to PCL Construction, Inc., 

Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment 

Plant Filter Improvements – Phase 1, in an amount not to exceed $1,894,778.44. 

 

24. Project Agreement No. WA2104.402, with PCL Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order 

Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Filter 

Improvements – Phase 2 



Page 10 of 11 
 

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2104.402 to PCL Construction, Inc., 

Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment 

Plant Filter Improvements – Phase 2, in an amount not to exceed $1,684,593.88. 

 

25. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2104.451, with Hazen and Sawyer, P.C., for the 

Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Filter Media Replacement Construction Management 

Services 

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2104.451 to Hazen and 

Sawyer, P.C., for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Filter Media Replacement 

Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $412,305. 

 

26. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2107.451, with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for the Hunt 

Highway Water Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation Construction 

Management Services 

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2107.451 to Arcadis U.S., 

Inc., for the Hunt Highway Water Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation 

Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $164,796. 

27. Sole Source Purchase of Professional Services for InfraMap Software Upgrade  

Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of professional services to upgrade 

the City's InfraMap software, from iWater, Inc., in the amount of $35,880. 

 

28. Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. WW2106.251, with MGC Contractors, Inc., for 

the Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation Pre-Construction Services 

Move City Council award Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. WW2106.251 to MGC 

Contractors, Inc., for the Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation Pre-Construction Services, in an 

amount not to exceed $104,476.81. 

 

29. Purchase of Traffic Signal Maintenance Services 

Move City Council approve the purchase of traffic signal maintenance services from 

Roadway Electric, LLC, utilizing City of Mesa Contract No. 2022146, and from CS 

Construction, Inc., utilizing City of Scottsdale Contract No. 2019-195-COS, in a combined 

amount not to exceed $150,000, for the period of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. 

 

Informational 
30. Special Event Liquor Licenses and Temporary and Permanent Extensions of Liquor License 

Premises Administratively Approved 

 

31. Study Session and Regular Minutes of June 1, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 



Page 11 of 11 
 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  August 15, 2022 

 

 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study 

Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 11th day of July 2022.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of August, 2022. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

July 14, 2022 | 6:00 p.m. 

Chandler City Council Chambers  

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke     Joshua Wright, City Manager  

Vice Mayor Terry Roe     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 

Councilmember OD Harris    Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Councilmember Mark Stewart     

*Councilmember René Lopez     

Councilmember Christine Ellis  

Councilmember Matt Orlando 

 

*Councilmember Lopez attended telephonically. 

  

Invocation 
The invocation was given by Pastor Roy Cheriyan, International Assembly of God. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember Ellis. 

 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 
Discussion was held on Item 17. 

 
Airport 

1. Amendment to the Airport Commission Bylaws  



Page 2 of 9 
 
 

 

Move City Council approve the amended Chandler Airport Commission Bylaws as 

recommended by the Chandler Airport Commission. 

 

City Clerk 

 2. Board and Commission Appointments  

Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended. 

 

City Manager 

3. Resolution No. 5599 Approving the Agreement between the Maricopa Association of 

Governments (MAG) and the City of Chandler to Develop a Project Assessment for 

Enhanced Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities and Potential Traffic Calming Elements on Hunt 

Highway, from Cooper Road to Val Vista Drive 

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5599 approving the Active Transportation 

Project Agreement No. 828C-0R between the Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) 

and the City of Chandler to Develop a Project Assessment for enhanced bicycle and 

pedestrian facilities and potential traffic calming elements on Hunt Highway, from Cooper 

Road to Val Vista Drive, in the amount of $70,000. 

 

4. Agreement No. CM8-962-3970, Amendment No. 2, with Lyft, Inc., for the First Mile, Last Mile 

Program 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. CM8-962-3970, Amendment No. 2, with Lyft, Inc., 

for the First Mile, Last Mile Program, in an amount not to exceed $50,000, for the period of 

one year, beginning July 21, 2022, through July 20, 2023. 

 

Community Services 

5. Agreement No. CS0-988-4215, Amendment No. 3, with BrightView Landscape Services, Inc., 

for Park Mowing Services 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. CS0-988-4215, Amendment No. 3, with 

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc., for park mowing services, increasing the spending limit 

by $189,410, for a revised amount not to exceed $989,366. 

 

Development Services  

6. Resolution No. 5598 Designating the Southside Village Neighborhood as a Historic 

Conservation District Located in the Southeast Quadrant of Arizona Avenue and Frye Road 

and Bounded by Arizona Avenue to the Union Pacific Railroad Tracks and by Frye Road to 

Pecos Road 

Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5598 designating the Southside Village 

Neighborhood as a Historic Conservation District to honor the history and heritage of 

Southside Village, located in the southeast quadrant of Arizona Avenue and Frye Road and 

bounded by Arizona Avenue to the Union Pacific Railroad tracks and by Frye Road to Pecos 

Road. 



Page 3 of 9 
 
 

 

 

7. Preliminary Development Plan, PLH22-0017 Andy's Frozen Custard, Located South of the 

Southeast Corner of McQueen Road and Chandler Boulevard  

Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH22-0017 Andy's Frozen 

Custard for site layout and building architecture for a new drive-thru restaurant, subject to 

the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

Economic Development 

8. Agreement with Greater Phoenix Economic Council (GPEC) for Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Move City Council approve the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 agreement with the Greater Phoenix 

Economic Council (GPEC) for regional economic development services, in the amount of 

$137,209, for the period of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. 

 

Fire Department 

9. Resolution No. 5564 Emergency Cooperation Agreement between the City of Chandler and 

Dignity Health 

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5564, approving an Emergency 

Cooperation Agreement with Dignity Health, authorizing the City Manager to execute the 

Agreement, and authorizing the Fire Chief to implement the provisions of the Agreement. 

 

10. Resolution No. 5600, approving a First Amendment to the Educational Affiliation Agreement 

between Phoenix Children's Hospital, Inc., and the City of Chandler, through the Chandler 

Fire Department, for Paramedic Student Clinical Training and Education  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5600 authorizing the Chandler Fire 

Department (CFD) to extend the term of the agreement with Phoenix Children's Hospital, 

Inc. (PCH), to allow clinical training and education for paramedic students to aid in meeting 

paramedic program requirements. 

 

11. Purchase of Extractors for the Fire Stations 

Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of extractors, from Coin & 

Professional Equipment Co., in the amount of $147,952. 

Information Technology 

12. Purchase of SolarWinds Software Annual Maintenance 

Move the City Council approve the purchase of SolarWinds software annual maintenance, 

from SHI International, utilizing the Omnia Partners Contract No. 2018011-02, in the 

amount of $74,701, for the term of August 18, 2022, through August 17, 2023. 

 

Management Services 

13. Agreement No. 4481, with Piper Sandler & Co., for Financial Advisor Services 



Page 4 of 9 
 
 

 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. 4481, with Piper Sandler & Co., for financial 

advisor services, for a two-year term, beginning July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2024, with the 

option of up to two two-year extensions. 

 

14. Agreement No. MS8-946-3817, Amendment No. 4, for Lockbox Services 

Move to approve Agreement No. MS8-946-3817, Amendment No. 4, with JPMorgan Chase 

Bank, N.A., for lockbox services, in the amount of $68,500, for the period of August 1, 2022, 

through July 31, 2023. 

 

15. Purchase of Office Supplies 

Move the City Council approve the purchase of office supplies, from Staples Business 

Advantage, utilizing the Sourcewell Contract No. 012320-SCC, for the period of April 1, 2022, 

through March 31, 2023, in an amount not to exceed $220,000. 

 

16. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License application for Hi 5 Sushi, LLC, DBA Hi 5 

Sushi 

Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for 

approval of the State Liquor Job No. 199998, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for Ben 

Phoung Lam, Agent, Hi 5 Sushi, LLC, DBA Hi 5 Sushi, located at 225 W. Warner Road, Suite 

3, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 303584. 

 

Neighborhood Resources 

17. Resolution No. 5604 Approving to Submit a Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) 

Application to HUD to Implement the Redevelopment of Chandler Public Housing Portfolio 

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5604, authorizing the City Manager or his 

Designee to submit an application to U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

(HUD) for HUD's Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program and to implement the 

redevelopment of the Chandler Public Housing Portfolio with the City of Chandler Housing 

and Redevelopment Division as Developer/Co-Developer, and authorizing the City Manager 

to take all action necessary to implement and operate all phases of the redevelopment and 

disburse public housing and/or affordable housing funds for related projects. 

 

LESLIE MINKUS, 3372 E. Gemini Ct, Chandler, stated that he has been a resident of Chandler for 

11 years, a Military Veteran and an active member of the Citizens Police Academy Association of 

Chandler for the past 5 years.  He expressed his admiration for the city in doing something to help 

people experiencing homelessness but is against the city applying for or accepting funds from the 

federal government or state agencies for homeless programs that may require the housing of or 

care of any individual that may be categorized as an illegal alien, foreign or domestic terrorist or 

convicted felon.  There are petitions being circulated to notify citizens of the potential for the 

funding that could have provisions that could apply to those categories of people.  Citizens should 

have the right and opportunity to decide how tax dollars are spent and studies should be 



Page 5 of 9 
 
 

 

conducted and reported to the public to determine impact that the homeless programs have on 

the health and safety of the city. He said the city is experiencing staffing shortage, increase in 

crime, and neglected neighborhoods.  Programs for the homeless may not enhance the health 

and safety of the community but rather do the opposite.  Chandler residents want city officials to 

be transparent and responsive to the public on these issues. He stated that accepting funding 

from federal and state agencies come with specific rules and requirements in which the city 

adheres.  He stated that President Joe Biden and Homeland Secretary, Alejandro Mayorkas are 

drafting plans to send busloads of migrants to U.S. towns hours away from the border. 

 

RUTH JONES, 2734 E. Birchwood Pl, Chandler, stated that she spoke about this issue at the Study 

Session Monday and was back to plead that the City Council change their mind on the issue.  She 

presented a video showing photos of waste, encampments, graffiti, and abandoned cars in various 

locations throughout the city.  She said that we needed to help those in need but first need to help 

the citizens who live here and consider all options.  The people that live in Chandler pay taxes, 

work, and want a good place to live.  She said the city has been doing programs with the federal 

government for a long time and instead of helping the homeless, it has done the opposite.  This 

year the homeless population in Chandler has risen by 76% which is more than double than any 

other city in the state of Arizona.  She explained that taking federal dollars will not have the impact 

that is hoped for and will not fix the problem.  She declared that entering into an agreement with 

HUD without any limits or identifying markers would not help the city.  She stated that 

Councilmember Stewart said it best on Monday night, “We need to untangle with the federal 

government”.  It important to think about the impact not only on the people we are helping but 

the people who live here.  She stated that there are residents of Chandler that have homes that 

are more than 50 years old that need repair and assistance.  She urged the Council to explore 

other options so that all the citizens of the City of Chandler are cared for. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked Mrs. Jones to follow up with the Community Services Department to ensure 

that the locations pictured in her presentation get cleaned up. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART thanked Mr. Minkus for his presentation.  He stated that he spoke 

with Leah Powell, Neighborhood Services Director regarding undocumented migrants utilizing the 

services and she confirmed that were not any of those cases.  He asked staff for an update. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART thanked Mrs. Jones for her presentation.  He clarified his comment 

at the Study Session regarding the federal government and stated that he was referring to the 

printing of money and not entanglement. 

 

Public Works and Utilities  

18. Agreement No. WW0-885-4137, Amendment No. 2, with In-Pipe Technology, LLC, and USP 

Technologies, LLC, for Collection System Odor and Corrosion Control 



Page 6 of 9 
 
 

 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. WW0-885-4137, Amendment No. 2, with In-Pipe 

Technology, LLC, and USP Technologies, LLC, for collection system odor and corrosion 

control, in a combined amount not to exceed $750,000, for a one-year period, July 1, 2022, 

through June 30, 2023. 

 

19. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2203.201, with GHD, Inc., for the Water Main 

Replacement 2022 Design Services 

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2203.201 to GHD, Inc., for 

the Water Main Replacement 2022 Design Services, in an amount not to exceed 

$808,781.50. 

 

20. Project Agreement No. WA2107.401, with Felix Construction Company, Pursuant to Job 

Order Contract No. JOC1913.401, for the Hunt Highway Water Production Facility Ground 

Subsidence Mitigation 

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2107.401 to Felix Construction 

Company, Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1913.401, for the Hunt Highway Water 

Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation, in an amount not to exceed $466,622. 

 

21. Professional Services Agreement No. WW2210.201, with Dibble & Associates Consulting 

Engineers, Inc., for the Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation Design Services 

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW2210.201 to Dibble & 

Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., for the Price Road Frontage Road Sewer 

Rehabilitation Design Services, in an amount not to exceed $270,000. 

 

22. Project Agreement No. WA2104.401, with PCL Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order 

Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Filter 

Improvements – Phase 1 

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2104.401, to PCL Construction, Inc., 

Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment 

Plant Filter Improvements – Phase 1, in an amount not to exceed $1,894,778.44. 

 

23. Project Agreement No. WA2104.402, with PCL Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order 

Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Filter 

Improvements – Phase 2 

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2104.402 to PCL Construction, Inc., 

Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment 

Plant Filter Improvements – Phase 2, in an amount not to exceed $1,684,593.88. 

 

24. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2104.451, with Hazen and Sawyer, P.C., for the 

Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Filter Media Replacement Construction Management 

Services 



Page 7 of 9 
 
 

 

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2104.451 to Hazen and 

Sawyer, P.C., for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Filter Media Replacement 

Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $412,305. 

 

25. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2107.451, with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for the Hunt 

Highway Water Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation Construction 

Management Services 

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2107.451 to Arcadis U.S., 

Inc., for the Hunt Highway Water Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation 

Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $164,796. 

 

26. Sole Source Purchase of Professional Services for InfraMap Software Upgrade  

Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of professional services to upgrade 

the City's InfraMap software, from iWater, Inc., in the amount of $35,880. 

 

27. Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. WW2106.251, with MGC Contractors, Inc., for 

the Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation Pre-Construction Services 

Move City Council award Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. WW2106.251 to MGC 

Contractors, Inc., for the Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation Pre-Construction Services, in an 

amount not to exceed $104,476.81. 

 

28. Purchase of Traffic Signal Maintenance Services 

Move City Council approve the purchase of traffic signal maintenance services from 

Roadway Electric, LLC, utilizing City of Mesa Contract No. 2022146, and from CS 

Construction, Inc., utilizing City of Scottsdale Contract No. 2019-195-COS, in a combined 

amount not to exceed $150,000, for the period of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. 

 

Informational 
29. Special Event Liquor Licenses and Temporary and Permanent Extensions of Liquor License 

Premises Administratively Approved 

 

30. Study Session and Regular Minutes of June 1, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

Consent Agenda Motion and Vote  
Councilmember Ellis moved to approve the Consent Agenda of the July 14, 2022, Regular City 

Council Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Harris.  

 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Current Events 



Page 8 of 9 
 
 

 

Mayor's Announcements 

MAYOR HARTKE reminded the public that early voting was underway and that July 22, 2022, is the 

last day to request an early ballot by mail and August 1, 2022, is the last day to vote early in person 

and referred the public to chandleraz.gov/elections for more information.  He announced that he, 

Councilmember Ellis, Councilmember Harris, Vice Mayor Roe, had the opportunity to meet with 

YMCA students from across the valley regarding a project on how to resolve homelessness.  He 

gave a shout out to the Basha company for their work on the world’s largest donut mosaic  

consisting of 14,400 donuts.  

 

Council's Announcements 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS expressed the importance of mental health and reminded the public 

that Mental Health resources are available.  He stated that Brittany Griner is being detained in 

Russia and announced that the government needs to do all they can to get her back home. 

 

VICE MAYOR ROE mentioned the Flex Chandler Ribbon Cutting and how it was another example 

of how Chandler is stepping ahead of other cities. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART stated the importance of voting and referred the public to the City 

Clerk’s website.  He specified the significance of Proposition 470 as it dictates how the city funds 

are spent. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS announced Chandler Flex ride share launched this week and encouraged 

the public to utilize the service.  Councilmember Ellis shared that Operation Back to School would 

be taking place on Saturday, July 16 at Chandler High School from 8:00 am to 10:00 a.m. 

 

City Manager's Announcements 

None.  

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:21 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  August 15, 2022 

 

 

 



Page 9 of 9 
 
 

 

Certification 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of Regular 

Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 14th day of July 2022.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of August 2022. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



ITEM  2 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 22-012
       

Date: August 15, 2022
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Subject: Official Canvass of the City of Chandler Primary Election of August 2, 2022

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council accept the official results of the August 2, 2022, Primary
Election of the City of Chandler.

Background/Discussion 
The City held its Primary Election on August 2, 2022, for the purpose of electing a
mayor, three councilmembers, and declaring a ballot issue - Proposition 470,
Home Rule. The election was held in conjunction with the countywide election on
a consolidated ballot.  Arizona Revised Statute §16-642 requires the governing
body canvass the returns of the election not later than twenty days following the
election.  

The attached canvass shows the final official results. Voter turnout was 35.09%
with 56,181 voters casting ballots out of a total voter population of 160,095.

Proposition 470 was approved overwhelmingly by a vote of 42,139 yes votes to
6,623 no votes.

Chandler City Charter Article VII, Section 7.01(d) - Majority Vote to Elect states:
  

At a primary election any candidate who shall receive a majority of all the
votes cast at such election shall be declared elected to the office for which he
is a candidate, and no further election shall be held as to said candidate,
provided that if more candidates receive a majority then there are offices to
be filled, then those equal in number to the offices to be filled, receiving the
highest number of votes shall be declared elected.



Kevin Hartke was declared elected to the office of the mayor. 

Matt Orlando, Jane Poston, and Angel Encinas were declared elected to the office
of councilmember at the 2022 Primary Election.  They received the highest
number of votes over the majority of votes cast number equal to the number of
seats to be filled and shall be issued certificates of election.  A run-off election is
not necessary.

The installation ceremony will occur on January 12, 2023.

Attachments
Final Official Results 
Statement of Votes Cast 
Early Voting Rejections 
Provisional Totals by Precinct 



Candidate Total
HARTKE, KEVIN 39,349 77.00%
JONES, RUTH 11,755 23.00%
Total Votes 51,104

Total
Unresolved Write-In 129

Total
Times Cast 56,181 / 160,095 35.09%
Undervotes 5,059
Overvotes 18

Precincts Reported: 55 of 55 (100.00%)

Chandler-Mayor (Vote for  1)  

Precincts Reported: 55 of 55 (100.00%)
Registered Voters: 56,181 of 160,095 (35.09%)
Ballots Cast: 56,181

FINAL OFFICIAL RESULTS
Primary Election
Maricopa County
August 2, 2022

Elector Group Counting Group Ballots Voters Registered Voters Turnout
REP EARLY VOTE 25,293 25,293 48.27%

ELECTION DAY 5,415 5,415 10.33%
PROVISIONAL 25 25 0.05%
Total 30,733 30,733 52,395 58.66%

DEM EARLY VOTE 22,945 22,945 46.80%
ELECTION DAY 1,478 1,478 3.01%
PROVISIONAL 19 19 0.04%
Total 24,442 24,442 49,030 49.85%

LBT EARLY VOTE 217 217 15.39%
ELECTION DAY 33 33 2.34%
PROVISIONAL 0 0 0.00%
Total 250 250 1,410 17.73%

NON EARLY VOTE 597 597 1.04%
ELECTION DAY 157 157 0.27%
PROVISIONAL 2 2 0.00%
Total 756 756 57,260 1.32%

Total EARLY VOTE 49,052 49,052 30.64%
ELECTION DAY 7,083 7,083 4.42%
PROVISIONAL 46 46 0.03%
Total 56,181 56,181 160,095 35.09%

8/10/2022 6:29:15 PMPage: 1 of 2



Candidate Total
ENCINAS, ANGEL 24,367 19.46%
GONZALEZ, DARLA 22,130 17.67%
ORLANDO, MATT 33,716 26.92%
POSTON, JANE 25,762 20.57%
SHIFA, FARHANA 18,080 14.44%
Total Votes 125,229

Total
HANNAH, CODY WRITE-IN 930 0.74%
NOT QUALIFIED 1 WRITE-IN 171 0.14%
NOT QUALIFIED 2 WRITE-IN 41 0.03%
NOT QUALIFIED 3 WRITE-IN 32 0.03%
Unresolved Write-In 0

Total
Times Cast 56,181 / 160,095 35.09%
Undervotes 43,224
Overvotes 30

Precincts Reported: 55 of 55 (100.00%)

Chandler-Councilmember (Vote for  3)  

Candidate Total
YES 42,139 86.42%
NO 6,623 13.58%
Total Votes 48,762

Total
Unresolved Write-In 0

Total
Times Cast 56,181 / 160,095 35.09%
Undervotes 7,419
Overvotes 0

Precincts Reported: 55 of 55 (100.00%)

Chandler-PROPOSITION 470 (Vote for  1)  

8/10/2022 6:29:15 PMPage: 2 of 2



Precinct Registered
Voters Cards Cast Voters Cast % Turnout

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 3,590 1,017 1017 28.33%
0044 AVIATION 1,613 333 333 20.64%
0046 AZALEA 2,976 1,038 1038 34.88%
0076 BRACKEN 4,181 1,233 1233 29.49%
0084 BULLMOOSE 1,568 657 657 41.90%
0108 CARLA VISTA 2,783 746 746 26.81%
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 4,150 2,130 2130 51.33%
0126 CHILTON 1,962 645 645 32.87%
0139 CLOUD 3,585 1,294 1294 36.09%
0143 COBBLE STONE 2,448 1,009 1009 41.22%
0147 COLONIA 5,257 1,994 1994 37.93%
0152 COMMONWEALTH 2,299 502 502 21.84%
0153 COMPADRE 5,781 2,131 2131 36.86%
0154 COMSTOCK 1,826 791 791 43.32%
0155 CONCORD 1,858 672 672 36.17%
0166 CORONA 1,689 717 717 42.45%
0197 DANYELL 3,747 714 714 19.06%
0204 DEL RIO 3,301 1,322 1322 40.05%
0223 DESOTO 1,989 641 641 32.23%
0229 DOBSON PARK 1,856 855 855 46.07%
0240 DUBLIN 3,068 887 887 28.91%
0260 EMMETT 3,093 1,008 1008 32.59%
0286 FOLLEY 2,199 595 595 27.06%
0291 FOX CROSSING 3,912 1,359 1359 34.74%
0298 FULTON RANCH 3,017 1,207 1207 40.01%
0299 GALVESTON 4,042 1,253 1253 31.00%
0302 GARDNER 2,745 772 772 28.12%

FINAL OFFICIAL RESULTS
STATEMENT OF VOTES CAST

Primary Election
Maricopa County
August 2, 2022

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 1 of 16



Precinct Registered
Voters Cards Cast Voters Cast % Turnout

0309 GERMANN 2,938 1,024 1024 34.85%
0310 GERONIMO 1,605 507 507 31.59%
0313 GILA 4,113 1,133 1133 27.55%
0387 HORSESHOE 3,830 1,488 1488 38.85%
0396 INDIGO 3,341 1,100 1100 32.92%
0402 JASPER 3,327 978 978 29.40%
0412 JUPITER 3,768 1,389 1389 36.86%
0433 LANTANA CANYON 2,597 977 977 37.62%
0434 LAREDO 3,686 1,375 1375 37.30%
0465 LONGHORN 3,875 1,552 1552 40.05%
0505 MCKEMY 3,515 1,320 1320 37.55%
0506 MCQUEEN 3,705 1,374 1374 37.09%
0522 MISSION 3,626 1,266 1266 34.91%
0542 MUSKET 1,558 392 392 25.16%
0549 NIGHTINGALE 3,017 1,181 1181 39.14%
0579 OAKGROVE 1,826 665 665 36.42%
0624 PEACH TREE 3,402 1,952 1952 57.38%
0682 REFLECTION 941 275 275 29.22%
0722 SAN MARCOS 2,756 705 705 25.58%
0780 SPRINGFIELD 2,267 618 618 27.26%
0781 SPRINGS 1,707 631 631 36.97%
0790 STELLAR 4,720 1,919 1919 40.66%
0799 SUN GROVES 3,698 1,247 1247 33.72%
0867 VELERO 1,498 550 550 36.72%
0868 VERANO 3,137 1,121 1121 35.73%
0871 VETERANS OASIS 1,379 516 516 37.42%
0890 WENDY 1,689 614 614 36.35%
0922 WINDMILL 2,039 790 790 38.74%
Chandler - Total 160,095 56,181 56,181 35.09%
CITY - Total 160,095 56,181 56,181 35.09%

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 2 of 16



Precinct Tim
es

 C
as

t

Re
gi

ste
re

d 
Vo

te
rs

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 1,017 3,590
0044 AVIATION 333 1,613
0046 AZALEA 1,038 2,976
0076 BRACKEN 1,233 4,181
0084 BULLMOOSE 657 1,568
0108 CARLA VISTA 746 2,783
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 2,130 4,150
0126 CHILTON 645 1,962
0139 CLOUD 1,294 3,585
0143 COBBLE STONE 1,009 2,448
0147 COLONIA 1,994 5,257
0152 COMMONWEALTH 502 2,299
0153 COMPADRE 2,131 5,781
0154 COMSTOCK 791 1,826
0155 CONCORD 672 1,858
0166 CORONA 717 1,689
0197 DANYELL 714 3,747
0204 DEL RIO 1,322 3,301
0223 DESOTO 641 1,989
0229 DOBSON PARK 855 1,856
0240 DUBLIN 887 3,068
0260 EMMETT 1,008 3,093
0286 FOLLEY 595 2,199
0291 FOX CROSSING 1,359 3,912
0298 FULTON RANCH 1,207 3,017
0299 GALVESTON 1,253 4,042
0302 GARDNER 772 2,745
0309 GERMANN 1,024 2,938
0310 GERONIMO 507 1,605

Precinct HA
RT

KE
, K

EV
IN

(N
ON

) 

JO
NE

S, 
RU

TH
(N

ON
) 

To
ta

l V
ot

es

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 673 250 923
0044 AVIATION 196 101 297
0046 AZALEA 727 222 949
0076 BRACKEN 883 236 1,119
0084 BULLMOOSE 443 133 576
0108 CARLA VISTA 487 211 698
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 1,669 323 1,992
0126 CHILTON 404 174 578
0139 CLOUD 951 224 1,175
0143 COBBLE STONE 752 159 911
0147 COLONIA 1,390 417 1,807
0152 COMMONWEALTH 308 149 457
0153 COMPADRE 1,552 384 1,936
0154 COMSTOCK 541 179 720
0155 CONCORD 454 145 599
0166 CORONA 468 164 632
0197 DANYELL 433 216 649
0204 DEL RIO 939 253 1,192
0223 DESOTO 394 179 573
0229 DOBSON PARK 637 129 766
0240 DUBLIN 585 228 813
0260 EMMETT 693 235 928
0286 FOLLEY 395 145 540
0291 FOX CROSSING 1,003 253 1,256
0298 FULTON RANCH 915 204 1,119
0299 GALVESTON 822 306 1,128
0302 GARDNER 520 182 702
0309 GERMANN 775 156 931
0310 GERONIMO 353 93 446

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 3 of 16

Chandler-Mayor (Vote for  1) 



Precinct Un
re

so
lve

d
W

rit
e-

In
CITY

Chandler
0011 ALAMO 1
0044 AVIATION 0
0046 AZALEA 2
0076 BRACKEN 3
0084 BULLMOOSE 1
0108 CARLA VISTA 3
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 4
0126 CHILTON 0
0139 CLOUD 5
0143 COBBLE STONE 2
0147 COLONIA 3
0152 COMMONWEALTH 5
0153 COMPADRE 0
0154 COMSTOCK 2
0155 CONCORD 5
0166 CORONA 0
0197 DANYELL 7
0204 DEL RIO 0
0223 DESOTO 2
0229 DOBSON PARK 5
0240 DUBLIN 6
0260 EMMETT 2
0286 FOLLEY 1
0291 FOX CROSSING 1
0298 FULTON RANCH 1
0299 GALVESTON 6
0302 GARDNER 1
0309 GERMANN 2
0310 GERONIMO 3

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 4 of 16



Precinct Tim
es

 C
as

t

Re
gi

ste
re

d 
Vo

te
rs

0313 GILA 1,133 4,113
0387 HORSESHOE 1,488 3,830
0396 INDIGO 1,100 3,341
0402 JASPER 978 3,327
0412 JUPITER 1,389 3,768
0433 LANTANA CANYON 977 2,597
0434 LAREDO 1,375 3,686
0465 LONGHORN 1,552 3,875
0505 MCKEMY 1,320 3,515
0506 MCQUEEN 1,374 3,705
0522 MISSION 1,266 3,626
0542 MUSKET 392 1,558
0549 NIGHTINGALE 1,181 3,017
0579 OAKGROVE 665 1,826
0624 PEACH TREE 1,952 3,402
0682 REFLECTION 275 941
0722 SAN MARCOS 705 2,756
0780 SPRINGFIELD 618 2,267
0781 SPRINGS 631 1,707
0790 STELLAR 1,919 4,720
0799 SUN GROVES 1,247 3,698
0867 VELERO 550 1,498
0868 VERANO 1,121 3,137
0871 VETERANS OASIS 516 1,379
0890 WENDY 614 1,689
0922 WINDMILL 790 2,039

Chandler - Total 56,181 160,095
CITY - Total 56,181 160,095

Precinct HA
RT

KE
, K

EV
IN

(N
ON

) 

JO
NE

S, 
RU

TH
(N

ON
) 

To
ta

l V
ot

es

0313 GILA 694 330 1,024
0387 HORSESHOE 1,115 249 1,364
0396 INDIGO 773 220 993
0402 JASPER 639 262 901
0412 JUPITER 945 312 1,257
0433 LANTANA CANYON 726 158 884
0434 LAREDO 937 317 1,254
0465 LONGHORN 1,196 226 1,422
0505 MCKEMY 881 285 1,166
0506 MCQUEEN 946 310 1,256
0522 MISSION 828 312 1,140
0542 MUSKET 276 77 353
0549 NIGHTINGALE 874 216 1,090
0579 OAKGROVE 448 152 600
0624 PEACH TREE 1,402 375 1,777
0682 REFLECTION 191 59 250
0722 SAN MARCOS 487 171 658
0780 SPRINGFIELD 392 193 585
0781 SPRINGS 446 134 580
0790 STELLAR 1,354 390 1,744
0799 SUN GROVES 897 245 1,142
0867 VELERO 384 119 503
0868 VERANO 790 219 1,009
0871 VETERANS OASIS 383 88 471
0890 WENDY 433 140 573
0922 WINDMILL 550 146 696

Chandler - Total 39,349 11,755 51,104
CITY - Total 39,349 11,755 51,104

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 5 of 16



Precinct Un
re

so
lve

d
W

rit
e-

In

0313 GILA 4
0387 HORSESHOE 2
0396 INDIGO 0
0402 JASPER 1
0412 JUPITER 4
0433 LANTANA CANYON 2
0434 LAREDO 1
0465 LONGHORN 4
0505 MCKEMY 0
0506 MCQUEEN 5
0522 MISSION 6
0542 MUSKET 1
0549 NIGHTINGALE 3
0579 OAKGROVE 2
0624 PEACH TREE 4
0682 REFLECTION 2
0722 SAN MARCOS 3
0780 SPRINGFIELD 1
0781 SPRINGS 0
0790 STELLAR 2
0799 SUN GROVES 3
0867 VELERO 1
0868 VERANO 3
0871 VETERANS OASIS 0
0890 WENDY 1
0922 WINDMILL 1

Chandler - Total 129
CITY - Total 129

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 6 of 16



Precinct Tim
es

 C
as

t

Re
gi

ste
re

d 
Vo

te
rs

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 1,017 3,590
0044 AVIATION 333 1,613
0046 AZALEA 1,038 2,976
0076 BRACKEN 1,233 4,181
0084 BULLMOOSE 657 1,568
0108 CARLA VISTA 746 2,783
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 2,130 4,150
0126 CHILTON 645 1,962
0139 CLOUD 1,294 3,585
0143 COBBLE STONE 1,009 2,448
0147 COLONIA 1,994 5,257
0152 COMMONWEALTH 502 2,299
0153 COMPADRE 2,131 5,781
0154 COMSTOCK 791 1,826
0155 CONCORD 672 1,858
0166 CORONA 717 1,689
0197 DANYELL 714 3,747
0204 DEL RIO 1,322 3,301
0223 DESOTO 641 1,989
0229 DOBSON PARK 855 1,856
0240 DUBLIN 887 3,068
0260 EMMETT 1,008 3,093
0286 FOLLEY 595 2,199
0291 FOX CROSSING 1,359 3,912
0298 FULTON RANCH 1,207 3,017
0299 GALVESTON 1,253 4,042
0302 GARDNER 772 2,745
0309 GERMANN 1,024 2,938
0310 GERONIMO 507 1,605

Precinct EN
CI

NA
S, 

AN
GE

L
(N

ON
) 

GO
NZ

AL
EZ

, D
AR

LA
(N

ON
) 

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 437 443
0044 AVIATION 146 116
0046 AZALEA 461 445
0076 BRACKEN 545 451
0084 BULLMOOSE 261 258
0108 CARLA VISTA 378 270
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 775 870
0126 CHILTON 323 244
0139 CLOUD 470 519
0143 COBBLE STONE 418 396
0147 COLONIA 810 876
0152 COMMONWEALTH 246 198
0153 COMPADRE 925 831
0154 COMSTOCK 297 331
0155 CONCORD 311 239
0166 CORONA 307 256
0197 DANYELL 439 286
0204 DEL RIO 568 487
0223 DESOTO 295 281
0229 DOBSON PARK 390 291
0240 DUBLIN 410 338
0260 EMMETT 450 418
0286 FOLLEY 271 272
0291 FOX CROSSING 606 492
0298 FULTON RANCH 503 451
0299 GALVESTON 567 477
0302 GARDNER 323 290
0309 GERMANN 421 403
0310 GERONIMO 218 218

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 7 of 16

Chandler-Councilmember (Vote for  3) 



Precinct OR
LA

ND
O,

 M
AT

T
(N

ON
) 

PO
ST

ON
, J

AN
E

(N
ON

) 

SH
IFA

, F
AR

HA
NA

(N
ON

) 

To
ta

l V
ot

es

HA
NN

AH
, C

OD
Y

Qu
ali

fie
d 

W
rit

e 
In

 

NO
T 

QU
AL

IFI
ED

 1
Qu

ali
fie

d 
W

rit
e 

In
 

NO
T 

QU
AL

IFI
ED

 2
Qu

ali
fie

d 
W

rit
e 

In
 

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 555 425 353 2,244 24 3 2
0044 AVIATION 150 133 101 656 10 0 0
0046 AZALEA 605 452 343 2,322 12 2 1
0076 BRACKEN 738 607 333 2,709 27 8 0
0084 BULLMOOSE 382 286 200 1,399 11 1 0
0108 CARLA VISTA 479 323 233 1,697 9 3 1
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 1,435 1,149 645 4,900 7 14 3
0126 CHILTON 363 264 184 1,391 12 1 0
0139 CLOUD 826 544 444 2,835 22 8 1
0143 COBBLE STONE 614 463 343 2,246 10 2 0
0147 COLONIA 1,124 847 665 4,363 34 5 1
0152 COMMONWEALTH 250 196 167 1,065 8 0 0
0153 COMPADRE 1,243 950 679 4,666 36 2 0
0154 COMSTOCK 439 354 287 1,729 16 5 0
0155 CONCORD 393 332 207 1,490 8 0 0
0166 CORONA 398 338 250 1,562 13 0 0
0197 DANYELL 399 284 211 1,643 16 4 2
0204 DEL RIO 786 647 510 3,020 22 0 0
0223 DESOTO 368 272 224 1,451 9 2 0
0229 DOBSON PARK 568 440 231 1,925 5 0 0
0240 DUBLIN 497 371 307 1,955 17 9 4
0260 EMMETT 580 454 312 2,238 22 2 0
0286 FOLLEY 337 244 199 1,345 15 5 2
0291 FOX CROSSING 897 680 433 3,132 24 0 0
0298 FULTON RANCH 773 580 373 2,702 17 3 1
0299 GALVESTON 707 605 389 2,775 16 6 4
0302 GARDNER 431 343 251 1,660 19 3 0
0309 GERMANN 666 483 320 2,304 10 1 0
0310 GERONIMO 300 212 157 1,118 8 3 1

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 8 of 16



Precinct NO
T 

QU
AL

IFI
ED

 3
Qu

ali
fie

d 
W

rit
e 

In
 

Un
re

so
lve

d
W

rit
e-

In

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 2 0
0044 AVIATION 0 0
0046 AZALEA 1 0
0076 BRACKEN 0 0
0084 BULLMOOSE 0 0
0108 CARLA VISTA 1 0
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 2 0
0126 CHILTON 0 0
0139 CLOUD 1 0
0143 COBBLE STONE 0 0
0147 COLONIA 1 0
0152 COMMONWEALTH 0 0
0153 COMPADRE 0 0
0154 COMSTOCK 0 0
0155 CONCORD 0 0
0166 CORONA 0 0
0197 DANYELL 2 0
0204 DEL RIO 0 0
0223 DESOTO 0 0
0229 DOBSON PARK 0 0
0240 DUBLIN 2 0
0260 EMMETT 0 0
0286 FOLLEY 0 0
0291 FOX CROSSING 0 0
0298 FULTON RANCH 1 0
0299 GALVESTON 4 0
0302 GARDNER 0 0
0309 GERMANN 0 0
0310 GERONIMO 1 0

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 9 of 16



Precinct Tim
es

 C
as

t

Re
gi

ste
re

d 
Vo

te
rs

0313 GILA 1,133 4,113
0387 HORSESHOE 1,488 3,830
0396 INDIGO 1,100 3,341
0402 JASPER 978 3,327
0412 JUPITER 1,389 3,768
0433 LANTANA CANYON 977 2,597
0434 LAREDO 1,375 3,686
0465 LONGHORN 1,552 3,875
0505 MCKEMY 1,320 3,515
0506 MCQUEEN 1,374 3,705
0522 MISSION 1,266 3,626
0542 MUSKET 392 1,558
0549 NIGHTINGALE 1,181 3,017
0579 OAKGROVE 665 1,826
0624 PEACH TREE 1,952 3,402
0682 REFLECTION 275 941
0722 SAN MARCOS 705 2,756
0780 SPRINGFIELD 618 2,267
0781 SPRINGS 631 1,707
0790 STELLAR 1,919 4,720
0799 SUN GROVES 1,247 3,698
0867 VELERO 550 1,498
0868 VERANO 1,121 3,137
0871 VETERANS OASIS 516 1,379
0890 WENDY 614 1,689
0922 WINDMILL 790 2,039

Chandler - Total 56,181 160,095
CITY - Total 56,181 160,095

Precinct EN
CI

NA
S, 

AN
GE

L
(N

ON
) 

GO
NZ

AL
EZ

, D
AR

LA
(N

ON
) 

0313 GILA 534 480
0387 HORSESHOE 662 593
0396 INDIGO 470 439
0402 JASPER 513 397
0412 JUPITER 636 494
0433 LANTANA CANYON 416 418
0434 LAREDO 623 553
0465 LONGHORN 594 613
0505 MCKEMY 561 547
0506 MCQUEEN 561 500
0522 MISSION 541 461
0542 MUSKET 183 170
0549 NIGHTINGALE 479 501
0579 OAKGROVE 295 283
0624 PEACH TREE 651 862
0682 REFLECTION 139 96
0722 SAN MARCOS 400 267
0780 SPRINGFIELD 308 211
0781 SPRINGS 305 223
0790 STELLAR 813 718
0799 SUN GROVES 524 531
0867 VELERO 250 212
0868 VERANO 537 373
0871 VETERANS OASIS 207 216
0890 WENDY 277 227
0922 WINDMILL 317 298

Chandler - Total 24,367 22,130
CITY - Total 24,367 22,130

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 10 of 16



Precinct OR
LA

ND
O,

 M
AT

T
(N

ON
) 

PO
ST

ON
, J

AN
E

(N
ON

) 

SH
IFA

, F
AR

HA
NA

(N
ON

) 

To
ta

l V
ot

es

HA
NN

AH
, C

OD
Y

Qu
ali

fie
d 

W
rit

e 
In

 

NO
T 

QU
AL

IFI
ED

 1
Qu

ali
fie

d 
W

rit
e 

In
 

NO
T 

QU
AL

IFI
ED

 2
Qu

ali
fie

d 
W

rit
e 

In
 

0313 GILA 577 488 365 2,484 32 4 2
0387 HORSESHOE 934 677 478 3,369 20 4 0
0396 INDIGO 644 492 384 2,438 5 4 0
0402 JASPER 577 437 294 2,252 34 0 0
0412 JUPITER 853 674 442 3,140 36 3 1
0433 LANTANA CANYON 616 443 305 2,216 16 2 0
0434 LAREDO 822 609 456 3,090 25 2 0
0465 LONGHORN 1,019 700 467 3,432 28 7 3
0505 MCKEMY 720 589 399 2,838 19 3 0
0506 MCQUEEN 859 688 411 3,043 15 6 2
0522 MISSION 731 576 382 2,727 33 3 0
0542 MUSKET 235 156 135 890 10 1 0
0549 NIGHTINGALE 775 571 386 2,734 18 4 0
0579 OAKGROVE 381 293 205 1,476 14 3 1
0624 PEACH TREE 1,165 1,009 621 4,328 16 2 1
0682 REFLECTION 165 118 103 630 3 2 2
0722 SAN MARCOS 419 295 220 1,613 9 3 0
0780 SPRINGFIELD 359 302 217 1,410 10 1 1
0781 SPRINGS 423 295 211 1,468 11 0 0
0790 STELLAR 1,198 855 662 4,284 34 4 0
0799 SUN GROVES 799 552 421 2,842 9 4 1
0867 VELERO 330 270 184 1,258 11 1 0
0868 VERANO 674 507 319 2,441 27 2 1
0871 VETERANS OASIS 280 233 217 1,164 3 8 0
0890 WENDY 395 299 204 1,422 15 3 2
0922 WINDMILL 463 356 241 1,698 18 3 1

Chandler - Total 33,716 25,762 18,080 125,229 930 171 41
CITY - Total 33,716 25,762 18,080 125,229 930 171 41

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 11 of 16



Precinct NO
T 

QU
AL

IFI
ED

 3
Qu

ali
fie

d 
W

rit
e 

In
 

Un
re

so
lve

d
W

rit
e-

In

0313 GILA 2 0
0387 HORSESHOE 1 0
0396 INDIGO 0 0
0402 JASPER 0 0
0412 JUPITER 1 0
0433 LANTANA CANYON 0 0
0434 LAREDO 0 0
0465 LONGHORN 1 0
0505 MCKEMY 0 0
0506 MCQUEEN 1 0
0522 MISSION 0 0
0542 MUSKET 0 0
0549 NIGHTINGALE 0 0
0579 OAKGROVE 1 0
0624 PEACH TREE 1 0
0682 REFLECTION 2 0
0722 SAN MARCOS 0 0
0780 SPRINGFIELD 1 0
0781 SPRINGS 0 0
0790 STELLAR 0 0
0799 SUN GROVES 1 0
0867 VELERO 0 0
0868 VERANO 1 0
0871 VETERANS OASIS 0 0
0890 WENDY 0 0
0922 WINDMILL 1 0

Chandler - Total 32 0
CITY - Total 32 0

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 12 of 16



Precinct Tim
es

 C
as

t

Re
gi

ste
re

d 
Vo

te
rs

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 1,017 3,590
0044 AVIATION 333 1,613
0046 AZALEA 1,038 2,976
0076 BRACKEN 1,233 4,181
0084 BULLMOOSE 657 1,568
0108 CARLA VISTA 746 2,783
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 2,130 4,150
0126 CHILTON 645 1,962
0139 CLOUD 1,294 3,585
0143 COBBLE STONE 1,009 2,448
0147 COLONIA 1,994 5,257
0152 COMMONWEALTH 502 2,299
0153 COMPADRE 2,131 5,781
0154 COMSTOCK 791 1,826
0155 CONCORD 672 1,858
0166 CORONA 717 1,689
0197 DANYELL 714 3,747
0204 DEL RIO 1,322 3,301
0223 DESOTO 641 1,989
0229 DOBSON PARK 855 1,856
0240 DUBLIN 887 3,068
0260 EMMETT 1,008 3,093
0286 FOLLEY 595 2,199
0291 FOX CROSSING 1,359 3,912
0298 FULTON RANCH 1,207 3,017
0299 GALVESTON 1,253 4,042
0302 GARDNER 772 2,745
0309 GERMANN 1,024 2,938
0310 GERONIMO 507 1,605

Precinct YE
S

(N
ON

) 

NO (N
ON

) 

To
ta

l V
ot

es

CITY
Chandler

0011 ALAMO 753 133 886
0044 AVIATION 229 48 277
0046 AZALEA 782 152 934
0076 BRACKEN 923 156 1,079
0084 BULLMOOSE 491 63 554
0108 CARLA VISTA 552 96 648
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 1,665 295 1,960
0126 CHILTON 474 81 555
0139 CLOUD 932 173 1,105
0143 COBBLE STONE 781 119 900
0147 COLONIA 1,451 262 1,713
0152 COMMONWEALTH 386 54 440
0153 COMPADRE 1,617 229 1,846
0154 COMSTOCK 606 92 698
0155 CONCORD 509 81 590
0166 CORONA 533 94 627
0197 DANYELL 539 96 635
0204 DEL RIO 1,039 118 1,157
0223 DESOTO 484 90 574
0229 DOBSON PARK 663 56 719
0240 DUBLIN 627 133 760
0260 EMMETT 739 125 864
0286 FOLLEY 440 82 522
0291 FOX CROSSING 1,039 145 1,184
0298 FULTON RANCH 923 114 1,037
0299 GALVESTON 961 136 1,097
0302 GARDNER 579 88 667
0309 GERMANN 763 107 870
0310 GERONIMO 388 58 446

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 13 of 16

Chandler-PROPOSITION 470 (Vote for  1) 



Precinct Un
re

so
lve

d
W

rit
e-

In
CITY

Chandler
0011 ALAMO 0
0044 AVIATION 0
0046 AZALEA 0
0076 BRACKEN 0
0084 BULLMOOSE 0
0108 CARLA VISTA 0
0121 CHANDLER HEIGHTS 0
0126 CHILTON 0
0139 CLOUD 0
0143 COBBLE STONE 0
0147 COLONIA 0
0152 COMMONWEALTH 0
0153 COMPADRE 0
0154 COMSTOCK 0
0155 CONCORD 0
0166 CORONA 0
0197 DANYELL 0
0204 DEL RIO 0
0223 DESOTO 0
0229 DOBSON PARK 0
0240 DUBLIN 0
0260 EMMETT 0
0286 FOLLEY 0
0291 FOX CROSSING 0
0298 FULTON RANCH 0
0299 GALVESTON 0
0302 GARDNER 0
0309 GERMANN 0
0310 GERONIMO 0

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 14 of 16



Precinct Tim
es

 C
as

t

Re
gi

ste
re

d 
Vo

te
rs

0313 GILA 1,133 4,113
0387 HORSESHOE 1,488 3,830
0396 INDIGO 1,100 3,341
0402 JASPER 978 3,327
0412 JUPITER 1,389 3,768
0433 LANTANA CANYON 977 2,597
0434 LAREDO 1,375 3,686
0465 LONGHORN 1,552 3,875
0505 MCKEMY 1,320 3,515
0506 MCQUEEN 1,374 3,705
0522 MISSION 1,266 3,626
0542 MUSKET 392 1,558
0549 NIGHTINGALE 1,181 3,017
0579 OAKGROVE 665 1,826
0624 PEACH TREE 1,952 3,402
0682 REFLECTION 275 941
0722 SAN MARCOS 705 2,756
0780 SPRINGFIELD 618 2,267
0781 SPRINGS 631 1,707
0790 STELLAR 1,919 4,720
0799 SUN GROVES 1,247 3,698
0867 VELERO 550 1,498
0868 VERANO 1,121 3,137
0871 VETERANS OASIS 516 1,379
0890 WENDY 614 1,689
0922 WINDMILL 790 2,039

Chandler - Total 56,181 160,095
CITY - Total 56,181 160,095

Precinct YE
S

(N
ON

) 

NO (N
ON

) 

To
ta

l V
ot

es

0313 GILA 815 159 974
0387 HORSESHOE 1,116 146 1,262
0396 INDIGO 795 114 909
0402 JASPER 736 134 870
0412 JUPITER 1,055 156 1,211
0433 LANTANA CANYON 697 118 815
0434 LAREDO 1,010 178 1,188
0465 LONGHORN 1,141 180 1,321
0505 MCKEMY 1,005 127 1,132
0506 MCQUEEN 1,006 176 1,182
0522 MISSION 972 139 1,111
0542 MUSKET 255 59 314
0549 NIGHTINGALE 901 118 1,019
0579 OAKGROVE 477 79 556
0624 PEACH TREE 1,454 245 1,699
0682 REFLECTION 215 25 240
0722 SAN MARCOS 527 96 623
0780 SPRINGFIELD 471 76 547
0781 SPRINGS 500 55 555
0790 STELLAR 1,483 209 1,692
0799 SUN GROVES 930 173 1,103
0867 VELERO 412 66 478
0868 VERANO 861 114 975
0871 VETERANS OASIS 376 80 456
0890 WENDY 465 68 533
0922 WINDMILL 596 57 653

Chandler - Total 42,139 6,623 48,762
CITY - Total 42,139 6,623 48,762

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 15 of 16



Precinct Un
re

so
lve

d
W

rit
e-

In

0313 GILA 0
0387 HORSESHOE 0
0396 INDIGO 0
0402 JASPER 0
0412 JUPITER 0
0433 LANTANA CANYON 0
0434 LAREDO 0
0465 LONGHORN 0
0505 MCKEMY 0
0506 MCQUEEN 0
0522 MISSION 0
0542 MUSKET 0
0549 NIGHTINGALE 0
0579 OAKGROVE 0
0624 PEACH TREE 0
0682 REFLECTION 0
0722 SAN MARCOS 0
0780 SPRINGFIELD 0
0781 SPRINGS 0
0790 STELLAR 0
0799 SUN GROVES 0
0867 VELERO 0
0868 VERANO 0
0871 VETERANS OASIS 0
0890 WENDY 0
0922 WINDMILL 0

Chandler - Total 0
CITY - Total 0

8/10/2022 5:46:20 PMPage: 16 of 16



PRECINCT #0011
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 2

NS No Signature 2

L Returned Late 4

PRECINCT #0011 TOTAL 8

PRECINCT #0044
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 1

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0044 TOTAL 3

PRECINCT #0046
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 3

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0046 TOTAL 4

PRECINCT #0076
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 7

NS No Signature 3

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0076 TOTAL 11

PRECINCT #0084
Reason Code Description Count

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 4

PRECINCT #0084 TOTAL 5

Page 1 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0108
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0108 TOTAL 7

PRECINCT #0121
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 6

NS No Signature 2

L Returned Late 4

PRECINCT #0121 TOTAL 12

PRECINCT #0126
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0126 TOTAL 7

PRECINCT #0139
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 9

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 8

PRECINCT #0139 TOTAL 18

PRECINCT #0143
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

NS No Signature 2

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0143 TOTAL 8

Page 2 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0147
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

NS No Signature 4

L Returned Late 6

PRECINCT #0147 TOTAL 15

PRECINCT #0152
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 1

L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0152 TOTAL 4

PRECINCT #0153
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 10

NS No Signature 4

L Returned Late 5

PRECINCT #0153 TOTAL 19

PRECINCT #0154
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 3

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0154 TOTAL 5

PRECINCT #0155
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 4

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0155 TOTAL 7

Page 3 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0166
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 4

NS No Signature 3

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0166 TOTAL 9

PRECINCT #0197
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 3

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 6

PRECINCT #0197 TOTAL 10

PRECINCT #0204
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

NS No Signature 2

L Returned Late 6

PRECINCT #0204 TOTAL 13

PRECINCT #0223
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 4

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0223 TOTAL 5

PRECINCT #0229
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 2

NS No Signature 4

L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0229 TOTAL 9

Page 4 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0240
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 2

L Returned Late 5

PRECINCT #0240 TOTAL 7

PRECINCT #0260
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 2

NS No Signature 3

PRECINCT #0260 TOTAL 5

PRECINCT #0286
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 4

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0286 TOTAL 5

PRECINCT #0291
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 10

L Returned Late 4

PRECINCT #0291 TOTAL 14

PRECINCT #0298
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 4

NS No Signature 4

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0298 TOTAL 10

PRECINCT #0299
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 3

NS No Signature 1

Page 5 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0299 TOTAL 7

PRECINCT #0302
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 9

NS No Signature 3

L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0302 TOTAL 15

PRECINCT #0309
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 3

L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0309 TOTAL 6

PRECINCT #0310
Reason Code Description Count

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0310 TOTAL 1

PRECINCT #0313
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 2

L Returned Late 8

PRECINCT #0313 TOTAL 10

Page 6 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0387
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 5

PRECINCT #0387 TOTAL 11

PRECINCT #0396
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 4

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0396 TOTAL 8

PRECINCT #0402
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 4

L Returned Late 5

PRECINCT #0402 TOTAL 9

PRECINCT #0412
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

NS No Signature 2

L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0412 TOTAL 10

PRECINCT #0433
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0433 TOTAL 7

Page 7 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0434
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 8

NS No Signature 4

L Returned Late 4

PRECINCT #0434 TOTAL 16

PRECINCT #0465
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 7

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 19

PRECINCT #0465 TOTAL 27

PRECINCT #0505
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 6

NS No Signature 2

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0505 TOTAL 10

PRECINCT #0506
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 10

L Returned Late 4

PRECINCT #0506 TOTAL 14

PRECINCT #0522
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 6

NS No Signature 2

L Returned Late 5

PRECINCT #0522 TOTAL 13

Page 8 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0542
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 1

L Returned Late 5

PRECINCT #0542 TOTAL 6

PRECINCT #0549
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0549 TOTAL 7

PRECINCT #0579
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 1

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0579 TOTAL 3

PRECINCT #0624
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 6

NS No Signature 5

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0624 TOTAL 13

PRECINCT #0682
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 2

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0682 TOTAL 4

Page 9 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0722
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 5

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0722 TOTAL 8

PRECINCT #0780
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 3

L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0780 TOTAL 6

PRECINCT #0781
Reason Code Description Count

L Returned Late 3

PRECINCT #0781 TOTAL 3

PRECINCT #0790
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 13

L Returned Late 4

PRECINCT #0790 TOTAL 17

PRECINCT #0799
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 2

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0799 TOTAL 4

Page 10 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0867
Reason Code Description Count

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 1

PRECINCT #0867 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0868
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 4

L Returned Late 6

PRECINCT #0868 TOTAL 10

PRECINCT #0871
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 1

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0871 TOTAL 3

PRECINCT #0890
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 1

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0890 TOTAL 3

PRECINCT #0922
Reason Code Description Count

BS Bad Signature 1

NS No Signature 1

L Returned Late 2

PRECINCT #0922 TOTAL 4

Page 11 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler



NS No Signature 67

Total Rejected 295
L Returned Late 182

Total Rejected + Late 477

Page 12 of 128/12/2022 12:11:01 PM

Early Voting Rejections
 Aug 2 2022 Primary Election

City of Chandler

SUMMARY - ALL PRECINCTS

Reason Code Description Count
BS Bad Signature 228



PRECINCT #0011
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B17 CONDITIONAL PROVISIONAL - SUFFICIENT ID NOT PROVIDED BY DEADLINE 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0011 TOTAL 3

PRECINCT #0044

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

PRECINCT #0044 TOTAL 1

PRECINCT #0046
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0046 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0076
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 3

Total No 3

PRECINCT #0076 TOTAL 3

Page 1 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0084
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0084 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0108

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 4

Total Yes 4

No

B17 CONDITIONAL PROVISIONAL - SUFFICIENT ID NOT PROVIDED BY DEADLINE 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0108 TOTAL 5

PRECINCT #0121
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0121 TOTAL 1

Page 2 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0139
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 4

Total Yes 4

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 3

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 4

PRECINCT #0139 TOTAL 8

PRECINCT #0143

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0143 TOTAL 3

PRECINCT #0147
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 2

Total Yes 2

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0147 TOTAL 3

Page 3 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0152
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0152 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0153

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 2

Total Yes 2

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 4

B17 CONDITIONAL PROVISIONAL - SUFFICIENT ID NOT PROVIDED BY DEADLINE 1

Total No 6

PRECINCT #0153 TOTAL 8

PRECINCT #0154
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 2

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 3

PRECINCT #0154 TOTAL 3

Page 4 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0166
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0166 TOTAL 1

PRECINCT #0204

Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0204 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0223
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0223 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0229
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 3

Total Yes 3

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 2

Total No 3

PRECINCT #0229 TOTAL 6

Page 5 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0240
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 2

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0240 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0260

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0260 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0291
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B13 YOUR EARLY BALLOT WAS SENT. RETURNED AND COUNTED 1

B17 CONDITIONAL PROVISIONAL - SUFFICIENT ID NOT PROVIDED BY DEADLINE 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0291 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0298
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 8

Total No 8

PRECINCT #0298 TOTAL 8

Page 6 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0299
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 7

Total No 7

PRECINCT #0299 TOTAL 8

PRECINCT #0302

Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0302 TOTAL 1

PRECINCT #0309
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0309 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0310
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0310 TOTAL 1

Page 7 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0313
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 3

Total Yes 3

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 3

Total No 3

PRECINCT #0313 TOTAL 6

PRECINCT #0387

Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0387 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0396
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 2

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 2

Total No 4

PRECINCT #0396 TOTAL 5

Page 8 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0402
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 4

Total Yes 4

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0402 TOTAL 6

PRECINCT #0412

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

PRECINCT #0412 TOTAL 1

PRECINCT #0433
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B13 YOUR EARLY BALLOT WAS SENT. RETURNED AND COUNTED 1

B17 CONDITIONAL PROVISIONAL - SUFFICIENT ID NOT PROVIDED BY DEADLINE 1

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0433 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0465
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

PRECINCT #0465 TOTAL 1

Page 9 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0505
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

PRECINCT #0505 TOTAL 1

PRECINCT #0506

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 5

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 3

Total No 8

PRECINCT #0506 TOTAL 9

PRECINCT #0522
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 2

Total Yes 2

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 2

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0522 TOTAL 4

PRECINCT #0542
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0542 TOTAL 1

Page 10 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0549
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 3

Total No 4

PRECINCT #0549 TOTAL 5

PRECINCT #0579

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

PRECINCT #0579 TOTAL 1

PRECINCT #0624
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 2

Total Yes 2

PRECINCT #0624 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0722
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 5

Total No 5

PRECINCT #0722 TOTAL 6

Page 11 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0780
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0780 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0790

Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 1

Total Yes 1

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 2

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 3

PRECINCT #0790 TOTAL 4

PRECINCT #0799
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 2

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0799 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0867
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0867 TOTAL 1

Page 12 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



PRECINCT #0868
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 2

Total Yes 2

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 2

Total No 3

PRECINCT #0868 TOTAL 5

PRECINCT #0871

Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 2

Total No 2

PRECINCT #0871 TOTAL 2

PRECINCT #0890
Counted Reason Code Description Count

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0890 TOTAL 1

PRECINCT #0922
Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 2

Total Yes 2

No

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 1

Total No 1

PRECINCT #0922 TOTAL 3

Page 13 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler



Counted Reason Code Description Count

Yes

A ACCEPTED 48

Total Yes 48

No

B10 YOU ARE NOT REGISTERED TO VOTE 41

B12 YOU WERE NOT ELIGIBLE TO VOTE IN THIS ELECTION 57

B13 YOUR EARLY BALLOT WAS SENT. RETURNED AND COUNTED 2

B17 CONDITIONAL PROVISIONAL - SUFFICIENT ID NOT PROVIDED BY DEADLINE 5

Total No 105

Cumulative Total: 153

SUMMARY - ALL PRECINCTS

Page 14 of 148/11/2022 1:49:59 PM

Provisional Totals by Precinct - Canvass 
1388   2022-08-02, Maricopa County, Aug 2 2022 Primary 

Election

City of Chandler


	Agenda
	1__July 2022 Council Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_Minutes of the Work Session of July 11, 2022
	       ATT_Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 11, 2022
	       ATT_Minutes of the Study Session of July 11, 2022
	       ATT_Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 14, 2022
	2__August 2 2022 Primary Election Canvass
	       ATT_Final Official Results
	       ATT_Statement of Votes Cast
	       ATT_Early Voting Rejections
	       ATT_Provisional Totals by Precinct



